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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Dear Investor,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, We are pleased to present Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Plan-l accounts
review for the year ended June 30, 2018 (launched on December 29, 2016).

ECONOMY AND MONEY MARKET OVERVIEW

FY18 has been a rollercoaster ride of contradicting economic indicators with benign inflation and healthy LSM growth
positively contributed to the economy, while mounting fiscal pressure, falling FX reserves, and political turmoil created a
negative impact on the economy. Upward trending global commodity prices, especially rising crude oil prices, further
added to the woes of the local economy.

GDP growth is expected to set at a record 10 years high of ~5.7% supported by a robust industrial and services sector
growth. The marked end of power crises along with easing monetary cycle has led to an expansion in LSM growth which
is expected to post a growth of ~7% for FY18. Inflation as measured by CPI has averaged ~4.0% owing to adequate
supply of commodities and a stable currency during the most part of the year. However, for FY19, we expect CPI to jack
up to average of ~7.5% owing to rising commodity prices along with weakness in currency. Furthermore, the weaker
currency is also expected to shoot up the core inflation above 8.0%.

External sector has been the Achilles heel as a record high current account deficit along with financial flows by both
bilateral and multilateral institutions have caused a scarcity of dollars. Current account deficit soared to USD 18 billion,
nearly 5.8% of the GDP raising alarm bells for the economy. As a result of which, foreign exchange reserves of SBP have
depleted by USD 6.5 bn during FY18 to USD 9.7 bn, providing a mere import coverage of ~2.0x. By large, Pakistan could
be heading towards another IMF program during the second quarter of next fiscal year unless significant flows are generated
via the amnesty scheme.

During FY18 State Bank of Pakistan increased Policy Rate by a cumulative 75bps mainly due to ballooning twin deficits,
declining real interest rates and rapid increase in imports. In anticipation of an interest rate hike, bond yield curve showed
an upward trajectory particularly during the second half of FY18. Pace of widening trade deficit remained alarmingly high
which kept on diluting Forex reserves, keeping investors away from longer tenor securities. To extend maturity profile SBP
introduced Floater rate 10 year bond with a base rate of 6-month MTB weighted average yield. Healthy participation of
PKR 174 billion was witnessed in the very first auction of 10 year Floater bond out of which a total of PKR 20 billion was
accepted at a rate of benchmark + 50 bps. Liquidity remained comfortable throughout FY18 owing to regular OMOs
conducted by SBP. Scarcity of Shariah Compliant avenues continued in period under review as there was no fresh issuance
of ljara SUKUK despite ample liquidity in the market.

EQUITIES MARKET OVERVIEW

Equities turned red after a span of nearly 9 years, as the benchmark index lost ~10% during the year. Both economic and
political factors continued to haunt the investors; with the dominant theme prevailing around the external account crisis.
Foreigners' in view of weak currency, kept offloading local equities, selling USD 288 mn of stocks which was mainly
absorbed by Insurance companies (~USD 204 Mn) and Companies (~USD 100 Mn) . Trading volumes during the year
averaged around 174 mn shares/ USD 8.15 bn depicting a massive decline of ~49%/47% YoY respectively.

Cyclicals had the worst year as emerging concerns on the economic growth kept the investors at bay. Cement and Autos
were major laggards as they lost ~42% and 30% respectively. Cements declined due to increasing coal prices and imminent
supply additions in the sector. While, Autos lost mainly due to a weak local currency along with negative sentiments
emanating post budget due to government's announcement of barring non-filers from purchasing vehicles. Power sector
shrank by ~20% due to rising circular debt resulting in non-payment of dividends by some companies and shut-down of
some FO plants post government orders. E&Ps and Fertilizers were the only major sectors providing positive return,
gaining 20% and 3% respectively. Against the market movement, E&Ps posted a considerable gain of ~20% YoY due to
surge in average oil prices by 29%. Fertilizer rallied due to improved sector dynamics in the form of comfortable inventory
levels and enhanced pricing power of the manufacturers being reflected in increased fertilizer prices post-budget.

FUND PERFORMANCE

During the period under review, the fund posted a return of -6.84% against -8.91% for the benchmark.
The fund was 42.9% invested in Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund and 51.4% invested in Alhamra Islamic Income Fund as at
30th June, 2018.

The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2018 stood at Rs. 1,404 million as compared to Rs. 1,584 million as at June
30, 2017 registering a decrease of 11.38%.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 2018 was Rs. 93.1720 as compared to opening NAV of Rs. 100.0163
per unit as at June 30, 2017 a decrease of Rs. 6.8443 per unit.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

For the next year, the economic growth is expected to slightly slow down as a weak currency and tighter monetary policy
will rein on the consumption patterns. However, increased power supply along with the documentation of economy will
provide a respite to the economic managers during this critical juncture. We share the optimism on better governance &
long term prospects for economic revival amid more focused and sincere efforts to address chronic issues on economic
front by the new government; however, the path is likely to be tough and with a number of potentially un-popular policy
steps. Given initial plans of PTI (ruling party) some sense of policy steps can be expected but given the precarious
economic conditions, we think immediate term measures to address twin deficits are critical.
Fiscal side is also expected to weaken as reckless spending by the government will cause fiscal deficit to cross above
6.0% of GDP. Given pressures on the external front along with rising inflation, State Bank is expected to further tighten
the monetary policy, with 100 bps already increased, which shall result in higher debt servicing cost for the government
during the next fiscal year. Along with entry to the IMF program, which will aim to curtail the fiscal deficit, developmental
expenditures will be sharply cut during the next year.

On the equity side, post elections, we shall closely monitor the environment to incorporate the new policy guidance as it
becomes available. In broader terms, we believe, the last two years market performance (down approx. 20% from peak
levels) has reflected the concerns on political and economic direction & also reflected in performance of cyclical stocks
where correction in stock prices is even sharper. We continue to reiterate our stance that current levels offer little downside
potential which puts in a lot of comfort for long term investors. We believe upside in stocks shall unveil only gradually as
confidence reigns back and economic policies shape the outlook in the expected manner. Therefore, going forward, stocks
offer long term investment opportunity with rewards for patient investors. We continue to track trends in the economic
indicators of the country and adjust our portfolio accordingly. Our Top-Down analysis favors sectors that benefit from
currency depreciation and higher interest rates; however, we cannot ignore the individual company dynamics along with
their prices that can play an important role in security selection.

Corporate Governance

The Fund is committed to implement the highest standards of corporate governance. With seven (7) non-executive directors
including three (3) independent Directors on the Board, as governing body of the Management Company, the Board is
accountable to the unit holders for good corporate governance. Management is continuing to comply with the provisions
of best practices set out in the code of corporate governance particularly with regard to independence of non-executive
directors. The Fund remains committed to conduct business in line with listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange,
which clearly defined the role and responsibilities of Board of Directors and Management.

The following specific statements are being given to comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance:

a. Financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the results of operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b. Proper books of accounts of the Fund have been maintained.

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan , provisions of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies (Establishment & Regulations) Rules, 2003, Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulations, 2008, requirements of the respective Trust Deeds and directives issued by the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan have been followed in the preparation of financial statements.

e. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored with
ongoing efforts to improve it further.

f. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance.

g. Outstanding statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges, if any have been fully disclosed
in the financial statements.

h. The statement as to the value of investments of provident/gratuity and pension fund is not applicable on the Fund
but applies to the Management Company; hence no disclosure has been made in the Directors' Report.

i.  All the directors have completed the Directors Training Programme course or are exempt from attending training
course due to sufficient working experience.

j. The detailed pattern of unit holding, as required by NBFC Regulations are enclosed.

k. The details of attendance of Board of Directors meeting is disclosed in financial statements. Below is the details
of committee meetings held during the year ended June 30, 2018:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1. Meeting of the Audit Committee.

During the year, nine (9) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The attendance of each participant is as follows:

Number of meetings
Number
Name of Persons ‘:f Attend L
meetings endance eave
held required Attended granted
1. Mr. Haroun Rashid 9 9 6 3
2. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 9 9 9 -
3. Mr. Nasim Beg 9 9 7 2
4, Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg 9 9 7 2

2. Meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee.

During the year, five (5) meetings of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee were held. The attendance
of each participant is as follows:

Number of meetings
Number
Name of Persons ‘:f Attend L
meetings endance eave
held required Attended granted
1. Dr. Syed Salman Shah 5 5 5 -
2. Mr. Nasim Beg 5 5 5 -
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 5 5 5 -
4. Mr. Haroun Rashid 5 5 3 2
5. Mr. Muhammad Saqib Saleem -CEO 5 5 5 -

3. In the meeting held on September 14, 2018, the Risk Committee of the Board was formed consisting of the following
members:

(i) Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg - Chairman
(i) Mr. Nasim Beg
(iii) Mr. Ahmed Jahangir

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The fund’s external auditors, A.F.Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants, have retired during the year & EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants have been appointed as an external auditors of the fund for financial year ending June 30, 2019.
EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants have also expressed their willingness to act as the fund auditors.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
The Board is thankful to the Fund's valued investors, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the
Trustees of the Fund for their continued cooperation and support. The Directors also appreciate the efforts put in by the

management team.

On behalf of Directors,

Vo i~

Muhammad Saqib Saleem Nasim Beg

Chief Executive Officer . . .
September 14, 2018 Director / Vice Chairman
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Dear Investor,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, We are pleased to present Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Plan-Il accounts
review for the year ended June 30, 2018.

ECONOMY AND MONEY MARKET OVERVIEW

FY18 has been a rollercoaster ride of contradicting economic indicators with benign inflation and healthy LSM growth
positively contributed to the economy, while mounting fiscal pressure, falling FX reserves, and political turmoil created a
negative impact on the economy. Upward trending global commodity prices, especially rising crude oil prices, further
added to the woes of the local economy.

GDP growth is expected to set at a record 10 years high of ~5.7% supported by a robust industrial and services sector
growth. The marked end of power crises along with easing monetary cycle has led to an expansion in LSM growth which
is expected to post a growth of ~7% for FY18. Inflation as measured by CPI has averaged ~4.0% owing to adequate
supply of commodities and a stable currency during the most part of the year. However, for FY19, we expect CPI to jack
up to average of ~7.5% owing to rising commodity prices along with weakness in currency. Furthermore, the weaker
currency is also expected to shoot up the core inflation above 8.0%.

External sector has been the Achilles heel as a record high current account deficit along with financial flows by both
bilateral and multilateral institutions have caused a scarcity of dollars. Current account deficit soared to USD 18 billion,
nearly 5.8% of the GDP raising alarm bells for the economy. As a result of which, foreign exchange reserves of SBP have
depleted by USD 6.5 bn during FY18 to USD 9.7 bn, providing a mere import coverage of ~2.0x. By large, Pakistan could
be heading towards another IMF program during the second quarter of next fiscal year unless significant flows are generated
via the amnesty scheme.

During FY18 State Bank of Pakistan increased Policy Rate by a cumulative 75bps mainly due to ballooning twin deficits,
declining real interest rates and rapid increase in imports. In anticipation of an interest rate hike, bond yield curve showed
an upward trajectory particularly during the second half of FY18. Pace of widening trade deficit remained alarmingly high
which kept on diluting Forex reserves, keeping investors away from longer tenor securities. To extend maturity profile SBP
introduced Floater rate 10 year bond with a base rate of 6-month MTB weighted average yield. Healthy participation of
PKR 174 billion was witnessed in the very first auction of 10 year Floater bond out of which a total of PKR 20 billion was
accepted at a rate of benchmark + 50 bps. Liquidity remained comfortable throughout FY18 owing to regular OMOs
conducted by SBP. Scarcity of Shariah Compliant avenues continued in period under review as there was no fresh issuance
of ljara SUKUK despite ample liquidity in the market.

EQUITIES MARKET OVERVIEW

Equities turned red after a span of nearly 9 years, as the benchmark index lost ~10% during the year. Both economic and
political factors continued to haunt the investors; with the dominant theme prevailing around the external account crisis.
Foreigners' in view of weak currency, kept offloading local equities, selling USD 288 mn of stocks which was mainly
absorbed by Insurance companies (~USD 204 Mn) and Companies (~USD 100 Mn) . Trading volumes during the year
averaged around 174 mn shares/ USD 8.15 bn depicting a massive decline of ~49%/47% YoY respectively.

Cyclicals had the worst year as emerging concerns on the economic growth kept the investors at bay. Cement and Autos
were major laggards as they lost ~42% and 30% respectively. Cements declined due to increasing coal prices and imminent
supply additions in the sector. While, Autos lost mainly due to a weak local currency along with negative sentiments
emanating post budget due to government's announcement of barring non-filers from purchasing vehicles. Power sector
shrank by ~20% due to rising circular debt resulting in non-payment of dividends by some companies and shut-down of
some FO plants post government orders. E&Ps and Fertilizers were the only major sectors providing positive return,
gaining 20% and 3% respectively. Against the market movement, E&Ps posted a considerable gain of ~20% YoY due to
surge in average oil prices by 29%. Fertilizer rallied due to improved sector dynamics in the form of comfortable inventory
levels and enhanced pricing power of the manufacturers being reflected in increased fertilizer prices post-budget.

FUND PERFORMANCE
During the period under review, the fund posted a return of -0.43% against -8.96% for the benchmark.

The fund was 43.6% invested in Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund and 52.9% invested in Alhamra Islamic Income Fund as at
30th June, 2018.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2018 stood at Rs. 794 million as compared to Rs. 87.97 million as at June
30, 2017 registering an increase of 803%.

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 2018 was Rs. 99.5728 as compared to opening NAV of Rs. 100.0057
per unit as at June 30, 2017 a decrease of Rs. 0.4329 per unit.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

For the next year, the economic growth is expected to slightly slow down as a weak currency and tighter monetary policy
will rein on the consumption patterns. However, increased power supply along with the documentation of economy will
provide a respite to the economic managers during this critical juncture. We share the optimism on better governance &
long term prospects for economic revival amid more focused and sincere efforts to address chronic issues on economic
front by the new government; however, the path is likely to be tough and with a number of potentially un-popular policy
steps. Given initial plans of PTI (ruling party) some sense of policy steps can be expected but given the precarious
economic conditions, we think immediate term measures to address twin deficits are critical.
Fiscal side is also expected to weaken as reckless spending by the government will cause fiscal deficit to cross above
6.0% of GDP. Given pressures on the external front along with rising inflation, State Bank is expected to further tighten
the monetary policy, with 100 bps already increased, which shall result in higher debt servicing cost for the government
during the next fiscal year. Along with entry to the IMF program, which will aim to curtail the fiscal deficit, developmental
expenditures will be sharply cut during the next year.

On the equity side, post elections, we shall closely monitor the environment to incorporate the new policy guidance as it
becomes available. In broader terms, we believe, the last two years market performance (down approx. 20% from peak
levels) has reflected the concerns on political and economic direction & also reflected in performance of cyclical stocks
where correction in stock prices is even sharper. We continue to reiterate our stance that current levels offer little downside
potential which puts in a lot of comfort for long term investors. We believe upside in stocks shall unveil only gradually as
confidence reigns back and economic policies shape the outlook in the expected manner. Therefore, going forward, stocks
offer long term investment opportunity with rewards for patient investors. We continue to track trends in the economic
indicators of the country and adjust our portfolio accordingly. Our Top-Down analysis favors sectors that benefit from
currency depreciation and higher interest rates; however, we cannot ignore the individual company dynamics along with
their prices that can play an important role in security selection.

Corporate Governance

The Fund is committed to implement the highest standards of corporate governance. With seven (7) non-executive directors
including three (3) independent Directors on the Board, as governing body of the Management Company, the Board is
accountable to the unit holders for good corporate governance. Management is continuing to comply with the provisions
of best practices set out in the code of corporate governance particularly with regard to independence of non-executive
directors. The Fund remains committed to conduct business in line with listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange,
which clearly defined the role and responsibilities of Board of Directors and Management.

The following specific statements are being given to comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance:

a. Financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the results of operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b. Proper books of accounts of the Fund have been maintained.

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan , provisions of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies (Establishment & Regulations) Rules, 2003, Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulations, 2008, requirements of the respective Trust Deeds and directives issued by the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan have been followed in the preparation of financial statements.

e. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored with
ongoing efforts to improve it further.

f. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance.

g. Outstanding statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges, if any have been fully disclosed
in the financial statements.

h. The statement as to the value of investments of provident/gratuity and pension fund is not applicable on the Fund
but applies to the Management Company; hence no disclosure has been made in the Directors' Report.

i.  All the directors have completed the Directors Training Programme course or are exempt from attending training
course due to sufficient working experience.

j-  The detailed pattern of unit holding, as required by NBFC Regulations are enclosed.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

k. The details of attendance of Board of Directors meeting is disclosed in financial statements. Below is the details
of committee meetings held during the year ended June 30, 2018:

1. Meeting of the Audit Committee.

During the year, nine (9) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The attendance of each participant is as follows:

Number of meetings
Number
Name of Persons ‘;f Attend L
meetings endance eave
held required Attended granted
1. Mr. Haroun Rashid 9 9 6 3
2. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 9 9 9 -
3. Mr. Nasim Beg 9 9 7 2
4. Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg 9 9 7 2

2. Meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee.

During the year, five (5) meetings of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee were held. The attendance
of each participant is as follows:

Number of meetings
Number
Name of Persons ‘:f Attend L
meetings endance eave
held required Attended granted
1. Dr. Syed Salman Shah 5 5 5 -
2. Mr. Nasim Beg 5 5 5 -
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 5 5 5 -
4. Mr. Haroun Rashid 5 5 3 2
5. Mr. Muhammad Saqib Saleem -CEO 5 5 5 -

3. Inthe meeting held on September 14, 2018, the Risk Committee of the Board was formed consisting of the following
members:

(i) Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg - Chairman
(i) Mr. Nasim Beg
(iii) Mr. Ahmed Jahangir

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The fund’s external auditors, A.F.Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants, have retired during the year & EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants have been appointed as an external auditors of the fund for financial year ending June 30, 2019.
EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants have also expressed their willingness to act as the fund auditors.
ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Board is thankful to the Fund's valued investors, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the
Trustees of the Fund for their continued cooperation and support. The Directors also appreciate the efforts put in by the
management team.

On behalf of Directors,

e i~

Muhammad Saqgib Saleem Nasim Beg

Chief Executive Officer . . .
September 14, 2018 Director / Vice Chairman
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION PLAN-I
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Type and Category
Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Plan-1 is a Shariah Compliant Islamic Asset Allocation Plan
Fund Benchmark

The benchmark for ALHIAAP-I is KMI-30 Index and six (6) months average deposit rates of three (3) "A" rated Scheduled
Islamic Banks or Islamic Windows of Conventional Banks on the basis of actual proportion held by the scheme

Investment Objective

Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Plan-l is a Shari'ah Compliant Islamic Asset Allocation Plan with an objective to earn a
potentially high return through active asset allocation among Shari'ah Compliant Islamic Scheme based on the Fund
Manager's outlook of the asset classes.

Manager's Review

During the year, the fund posted a return of -6.84% against its benchmark return of -8.91%. The exposure in Alhamra

Islamic Income Fund increased to 51.4% and exposure in Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund decreased to 42.9% as at June
2018.

Asset Allocation as on June 30, 2018 (% of total assets)

Others including Cash
receivables 0.2% 5.5%

Alhamra Islamic

Incorme Fond 51.4% Stock Fnd 4%

Asset Quality as on June 30, 2018 (% of total assets)

AAA
0.1%
A+
5.4%
Not Rated
94.5%

Syed Abid Ali
Fund Manager

Karachi: September 14, 2018
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION PLAN-II
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Type and Category
Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Plan-lIl is a Shariah Compliant Islamic Asset Allocation Plan.
Fund Benchmark

The benchmark for ALHIAAP-II is KMI-30 Index and six (6) months average deposit rates of three (3) "A" rated Scheduled
Islamic Banks or Islamic Windows of Conventional Banks on the basis of actual proportion held by the scheme

Investment Objective

Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Plan-Il is a Shari'ah Compliant Islamic Asset Allocation Plan with an objective to earn
a potentially high return through active asset allocation among Shari'ah Compliant Islamic Scheme based on the Fund
Manager's outlook of the asset classes.

Manager's Review

During the year, the fund posted a return of -0.43% against its benchmark return of -8.96%. The fund was 3.4% invested
in cash, 43.6% in Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund and 52.9% in Alhamra Islamic Income Fund as at June 2018.

Asset Allocation as on June 30, 2018 (% of total assets)

Others including Cash
receivables 0.1% 3.4%

Alhamra Islamic
Stock Fund 43.6%

Alhamra Islamic
Income Fund 52.9%

Asset Quality as on June 30, 2018 (% of total assets)

A+
3.2%
AAA
0.2%
Not Rated
96.6%

Syed Abid Ali
Fund Manager

Karachi: September 14, 2018
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

*
MCB MCB FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEE TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION FUND

Report of the Trustee Pursuant to Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

Al-Hamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund. an open-end Scheme established under a Trust
Deed executed between MCB-Arif Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited as
Management Company and MCB Financial Services Limited as Trustee on November 25,
2016.. The scheme was approved by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan on
December 02, 2016.

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited. the Management Company of
Al-Hamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund has, in all material respects, managed Al-
Hamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund during the vear ended June 30. 2018 in
accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i) Investment limitations imposed on the Asset Management Company and
the Trustee under the trust deed and other applicable laws:

(ii) the valuation or pricing is carried out in accordance with the deed and any
regulatory requirement:

(iii) the creation and cancellation of units are carried out in accordance with the
deed:

(iv)  and any regulatory requirement

MY

Khawaja Anwar Hussain
Chief Executive Officer
Karachi: September 13. 2018 MCB Financial Services Limited

4th Floor, Perdesi House, 2/1, R-Y-16, Old Queens Road, Karachi - 74200
Direct Nos. 021-32430485, 32415454, 32415204, 32428731 PABX No. 021-32419770, Fax No. 021-32416371
Website: http://www.mcbfsl.com.pk
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY BOARD

REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY BOARD

Alhamdulillah, We the Shariah Advisory Board of Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation (the Fund), are issuing
this report in accordance with the Offering document of the Fund. The scope of the report is to express an

opinion on the Shariah compliance of the Fund's activities.

[t is the responsibility of M/s MCB Aril Habib Savings and Investments limited (MCBAH), the management
company ol the fund, to establish and maintain a system of internal controls to ensure compliance with
Shariah guidelines. Our responsibility is to express an opinion, based on our review of the representation

made by the management, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified.

A review is limited primarily to inquire to the Management Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the management company to comply with prescribed criteria. In the light of the

above, we hereby certify that:

*«  We have reviewed and approved the modes of investment of ALHIAAP in the light of the Shariah
guidelines.
» All the provisions of the scheme and investiments made on account of ALHIAAP by Management

Company are Shariah Compliant and in accordance with the criteria established.

* On the basis of information provided by the Management Company, all the operations of
ALHIAAP for the period from July 01, 2017 to June 30, 2018 have been in compliance with
Shariah principles.

May Allah bless us with Tawfeeq to accomplish these cherished tasks, make us successful in this world and in

the hereafter, and forgive our mistakes.

C

/\-—

vl

Karachi: September 14, 2018 Dr Muhammad Zubair Usmani

For and on behalf of Shariah Advisory Board
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

-

pwe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AFFERGUSON&CO.

To the Unitholders of Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund (the Fund), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2018, and the income statement, statement
of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of movement in unit holders' funds for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Fund as at June 30, 2018, and of its financial performance, its cash flows and transactions for the year
then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide o
I's.

separate opinion on these matte
Following are the key audit matters:

S. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our
No. audit

1 Amendments to NBFC Regulations, 2008

We understood the requirements of the
SECP notification and made inquiries from
the management in respect of their
methodology for implementing the changes

(Refer note 3.9 to the annexed financial statements)

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through
its notification [SRO 756(1)/2017] dated August 3, 2017 made

certain amendments in the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008. The impacts of these
amendments have been incorporated in the financial
statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2018. These
amendments mainly include changes with respect to
recognition, measurement and ill'l.'hl_'ltlillinll of “element of
income”, addition of certain disclosures with respect to 'Income
Statement’ (relating to allocation of net income for the year)
and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders’ Funds'.

with respect to recording of clement of
income.

We performed walkthrough tests  for
ensuring compliance with the
requirements and in this respect obtained
reports of distribution of income and refund
of capital by the Fund.

revised

A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, I.I. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740; <www.pwe.com/pk>

* KARACHI = LAHORE * ISLAMABAD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

S.
No.

(]

AFFERGUSON&CO.

Key Audit Matters

The Fund has changed its accounting policy during the current
year in respect of accounting for “element of income”
consequent to the issuance of the above mentioned notification.
The change in accounting policy has been applied prospectively
from July 1, 2017 based on the clarification issued by the SECP.
With this change in accounting policy the element of income
which was previously recognized as part of the income for the
year in the Income Statement is now considered as a “capital
contribution” and taken to the Statement of Movement in Unit
Holders' Funds. Element of income is explained in note 3.9

The SECP notification also stipulates that the accounting
income available for distribution as appearing in the “Income
Statement” excludes income already paid on units redeemed
during the year. Accordingly, the net amount appearing on the
“Income Statement” after deducting the income already paid on
units redeemed is to be considered as the distributable amount.

In order to avail tax exemption, the Fund has to distribute 9o
percent of its accounting income (excluding sed and
unrealised capital gains). However, at the time of distribution
of income, the element of income contributed on issue of units
recognized in the equity during the year is required to be
refunded on the units in the same proportion in which income
is distributed from the Income Statement i.e after taking into
account the amount of income already paid on units redeemed.
Management has developed a svstem for carrying out the
caleulations for such distributions.

These calculations are important from the point of view of
ensuring compliance with the applicable requirements. The
above matters are significant accounting and regulatory
developments / events for the mutual fund industry affecting
the financial statements for the current year and therefore we
considered these developments as key audit matter.

Net Asset Value

(Refer notes 4 and 5 to the financial statements)

The investments and bank balances constitute the most
significant component of the net assets value. The investments
of the Fund at June 30, 2018 amounted to Rs 2,094.343

million and bank balances aggregated to Rs 105.335 million.

The proper valuation of investments and bank balances for the
determination of NAV of the Fund as at June 30, 2018 was
considered a high risk area and therefore we considered this as
a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

We verified transactions on a test basis with
the underlying records of the reports
provided by the man 1ent to assess their
compliance with the revised regulations

We recalculated the profit available for
distribution taking into account amount
already distributed at the time of
redemption

We verified the accuracy of the management
report for allocation of distributable amount
between “distribution out of income” and
“refund of capital”. This included testing the
parameters of the report

We verified disclosures relating to change in
accounting policy to ensure that these are in
compliance with the applicable accounting
and reporting framework.

We performed the following audit
procedures:
* Tested the design and oper

effectiveness of the key controls for

valuation of investments;

» Obtained independent confirmations for
verifving the existence of the investment
portfolio and bank balances as at June
30, 2018 and reconciled it with the books
and records of the Fund. Where such
confirmations were not available,
alternate  audit  procedures
performed,;

were

= Re-performed valuation to assess that
investments are carried as per the
valuation methodology specified in the
accounting policies;

= Obtained approval of Board of Directors
of the management company in relation
to opening of bank accounts; and
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pwc A'F FERGUSON&CO.

Key Audit Matters How the matter ::;iatlddressed in our

=  Obtained bank reconciliation sta
and tested :'vr:uu'lhrl;.'; items on

hasis.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors of the Management Company for
the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors of the management company is responsible for overseeing the Fund'’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Wy
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= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue
as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

arding, among other matters,
gs, including any significant

We communicate with board of directors of the management company r
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit fin
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide board of directors of the management company with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with board of directors of the management company, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion the financial statements have been prepared in
all material respects in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Noman Abbas Sheikh.

VSM%CO

Chartered Ac¢ofintants

Karachi

Date: September 24, 2018
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

AIAAP -1  AIAAP - I Total AIAAP -1  AIAAP - I Total
2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
Note -------------- (Rupees in 000) (Rupees in 000)---------------

ASSETS
Bank balances 4 77,940 27,395 105,335 104,568 12,996 117,564
Investments 5 1,326,599 767,744 112,094,343 []|1,492,831 74,956 |[]1,567,787
Profit receivable 420 221 641 3,039 269 3,308
Other receivable 209 - 209 139 - 139
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs 6 1,240 - 1,240 3,740 - 3,740
Total assets 1,406,408 795,360 2,201,768 1,604,317 88,221 1,692,538
LIABILITIES
Payable to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and

Investments Limited - Management Company 7 191 105 296 5,757 75 5,832
Payable to MCB Financial Services

Limited - Trustee 8 109 68 177 110 11 121
Payable to the Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan 9 1,385 687 2,072 723 3 726
Dividend payable 23 - - - 12,672 158 12,830
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 10 822 408 1,230 814 5 819
Total liabilities 2,507 1,268 3,775 20,076 252 20,328
NET ASSETS 1,403,901 794,092 2,197,993 1,584,241 87,969 1,672,210
UNIT HOLDERS’ FUND (as per statement attached) 1,403,901 794,092 2,197,993 1,584,241 87,969 1,672,210
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 11

(Number of units) (Number of units)
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 12 15,067,846 7,974,996 15,839,822 879,643
---------- (Rupees) --------- ~--------- (Rupees) ---------

NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 93.1720 99.5728 100.0163  100.0057
FACE VALUE PER UNIT 100.0000  100.0000

The annexed notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(Management Company)

s % =

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

AIAAP - | AIAAP - I Total AIAAP - | AIAAP - I Total
Note For the For the
iod from For the period from
For the year For the year For the year perio period from
December December
ended June ended June ended June 292016 to June 16, 20 2016 to
30, 2018 30, 2018 30, 2018 ’ 2017 to June ’
June 30, 30. 2017 June 30,
2017 ’ 2017
-------------------- (Rupees in 000) (Rupees in 000)-----=======sn=uun=s
INCOME
(Loss) / gain on sale of investments - net (61,042) 12,520 (48,522) (18,961) - (18,961)
Unrealised (diminution) / appreciation on
re-measurement of investments at fair
value through profit or loss - net 5.2 (45,188) (5,235) (50,423) 6,792 (44) 6,748
Profit on bank balances 4,844 2,507 7,351 24,849 259 25,108
Other income 2,510 1,779 4,289 1,157 - 1,157
Total income / (loss) (98,876) 11,571 (87,305) 13,837 215 14,052
EXPENSES
Remuneration of the Management Company 71 831 421 1,252 4,311 30 4,341
Sindh sales tax on remuneration of the
Management Company 7.2 107 55 162 561 4 565
Remuneration of the Trustee 8.1 1,208 665 1,873 619 10 629
Sindh sales tax on remuneration of the Trustee 8.2 157 87 244 80 1 81
Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan 9.1 1,385 687 2,072 723 3 726
Allocated expenses and related taxes 7.3 1,648 817 2,465 860 4 864
Printing charges - 27 27 141 - 141
Settlement and bank charges 22 23 45 27 1 28
Listing fee 26 1 27 593 - 593
Legal and Professional Charges 112 41 153 66 1 67
Auditors' remuneration 13 283 117 400 473 1 474
Provision against Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 10.1 - 173 173 264 3 267
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and
floatation costs 6 2,500 - 2,500 1,260 - 1,260
Total expenses 8,279 3,114 11,393 9,978 58 10,036
Net income for the year / period before
element of income and capital gains
included in the prices of units issued
less those in units redeemed - net (107,155) 8,457 (98,698) 3,859 157 4,016

Element of income and capital gains included in the prices of
units issued less those in units redeemed - net
- arising from realised / unrealised gains / (losses) | 10,605 | | (2)| | 10,603
8

- arising from other income (1,534) (1,526)
- - - 9,071 6 9,077
Net income for the year / period before taxation (107,155) 8,457 (98,698) 12,930 163 13,093
Taxation 15 - - - - - -
Net income for the year / period after taxation (107,155) 8,457 (98,698) 12,930 163 13,093
Earninas / (loss) per unit 3.13

Allocation of net income for the vear

Net income for the vear after taxation - 8.457 8.457
Income already paid on units redeemed - - -
- 8457 8,457

Accounting income available for distribution

- Relatina to capital aains | - | | 7.285 | | 7.285 |

- Excludina capital aains 1,172 1,172
- 8.457 8457

The annexed notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Vs - 3

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

AIAAP - | AIAAP - I Total AIAAP - | AIAAP - I Total
For the For the
eriod from For the period from
For the year For the year For the year P period from
December December
ended June ended June ended June 29 2016 to June 16, 29 2016 to
30, 2018 30, 2018 30, 2018 ’ 2017 to June ’
June 30, 30. 2017 June 30,
2017 ’ 2017
-------------------- (Rupees in 000) (Rupees in 000)--------------------
Net (loss) / income for the year / period
after taxation (107,155) 8,457 (98,698) 12,930 163 13,093
Other comprehensive income for the year / period - - - - - -
Total comprehensive (loss) / income
for the year / period (107,155) 8,457 (98,698) 12,930 163 13,093

The annexed notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(Management Company)

/*“7

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Director
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

AIAAP - | AIAAP - Il AIAAP -1 AIAAP - I
For the For the
period period
For th ded June 30, 2018 rom fro
or the year ended June 30, December 16,2017
25,2016 to June
%%Jz“oﬁ% 30, 2017
o Unrealised Unrealised
Undisti- appreciation/di appreciation/di
Capital buted N Capital | Undistri-buted _—
Particulars minution)on | Total minution) on Total Total Total
Value income/ | , . Value income/(loss) | ,_ .
available for ‘available for
(loss) sale' sale’
investments investments
Net assets at beginning of the year 1,583,983 258 1,584,241 87,964 5 - 87,969 - -
Issue of 204,603 units of Plan | and 7,692,214 of Plan I|
(2017: 16,225,459 units of Plan | and 879,643 units of Plan II)
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the year) 20,464 20,464 | | 769,265 - 769,265
- Element of income (210) (210) (11,310) - - (11,310)
Total proceeds on issuance of units 20,254 20,254 757,955 - 757,955 1,632,626 87,970
Redemption of 976,579 units of Plan | and 596,861 units of Plan II
(2017: 385,637 units of Plan | and nil units of Plan Il)
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the year) 97,674 97,674 59,690 - - 59,690
-Element of income (4,235) (4,235) 599 - - 599
Total payments on redemption of units 93,439 93,439 60,289 - - 60,289 39,572 -
Element ofincome / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices
of units issued less those in units redeemed - net - - - (9,071) (6)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year / period - (107,155) (107,155) 8,457 - 8,457 12,930 163
Distribution during the year / period - - - - - - (12,672) (158)
Netincome (loss) for the year / period less distribution - (107,155) (107,155) 8,457 - 8,457 258 5
Net assets at end of the year 7510,798 _ (106,897) 7403901 785,630 8,462 B 794092 1584241 87,969
Undistributed income / (loss) brought forward
- Realised (6,534) 49 - .
- Unrealised 6,792 (44) - -
258 5 - -
Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains 7,285
- Excluding capital gains 1,172
- 8,457
Netincome / (loss) for the year / period after taxation (107,155) - 12,930 163
Distribution for the year / period - - (12,672) (158)
Undistributed income / (loss) carried forward (106.897) 8,462 258 5
Undistributed income / (loss) carried forward
- Realised income (61,709) 13,697 (6,534) 49
- Unrealised income / (loss) (45,188) (5,235) 6,792 (44)
(106,897) 8,462 258 5
(Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees)
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 100.0163 100.0057 - -
Net assets value per unit at end of the year T931720 T 995728 __100.0163_ __100.0057

The annexed notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(Management Company)

5

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer

/*“7

Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

AIAAP -1 AIAAP - I Total AIAAP -1 AIAAP - I Total
For the For the For the
For the For the For the period from period period from

year ended yearended yearended December from June December

Note June 30, June 30, June 30, 29,2016to 16,2017to 29, 2016 to
2018 2018 2018 June 30, June 30, June 30,
2017 2017 2017
---------- (Rupees in 000)---------- -==-------(Rupees in 000)----------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year / period (107,155) 8,457 (98,698) 12,930 163 13,093

Adjustments for:
Unrealised diminution / (appreciation) on re-measurement of investments

classified as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' - net 45,188 5,235 50,423 (6,792) 44 (6,748)
Element of (income) / loss and capital (gain) / loss included in the

prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - net

- arising from realised / unrealised gains / (losses) - - - (10,605) 2 (10,603)
- arising from other income - - - 1,534 (8) 1,526
Provision against Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund - 173 173 264 3 267
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs 2,500 - 2,500 1,260 - 1,260
(59,467) 13,865 (45,602) (1,409) 204 (1,205)

Decrease / (increase) in assets
Investments 121,044 (698,023) (576,979)| | (1,486,039) (75,000) (1,561,039)
Profit receivable 2,619 48 2,667 (3,039) (269) (3,308)
Other receivable (70) - (70) (139) - (139)
123,593 (697,975) (574,382)  (1,489,217) (75,269) (1,564,486)

(Decrease) / increase in liabilities
Payable to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and

Investments Limited - Management Company (5,566) 30 (5,536) 757 75 832
Payable to MCB Financial Services (1) 57 56 110 1 121
Payable to the Securities and Exchange 662 684 1,346 723 3 726
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 8 230 238 550 2 552

(4,897) 1,001 (3,896) 2,140 91 2,231
Net cash flows from operating activities 59,229 (683,109) (623,880) (1,488,486) (74,974) (1,563,460)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Amount received against issuance of units 20,254 756,960 777,214 1,632,626 87,970 1,720,596
Amount paid against redemption of units (93,439) (59,294) (152,733) (39,572) - (39,572)
Dividend paid (12,672) (158) (12,830)

Net cash flows from financing activities (85,857) 697,508 611,651 1,593,054 87,970 1,681,024
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year / period (26,628) 14,399 (12,229) 104,568 12,996 117,564
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year / period 104,568 12,996 117,564 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / period 4 77,940 27,395 105,335 104,568 12,996 117,564

The annexed notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Vs g 3

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

21

2.2

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Al-Hamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed dated, November 25, 2016,
executed between MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited as Management Company and MCB Financial
Services Limited as Trustee. The Fund was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) on December 02, 2016 under the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008
(the NBFC Regulations 2008).

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Management Company under the
Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) through a certificate
of registration issued by the SECP. The registered office of the Management Company is situated at 24th Floor,
Centre Point, Off. Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, Near KPT interchange, Karachi, Pakistan.

The Fund is an open-ended mutual fund and has been categorised as "Shariah Compliant Asset Allocation Fund
of Funds". The units of the Fund are redeemable subject to a contingent load.

The duration of the Fund is perpetual. However, Allocation Plans launched may have a set time frame. The Fund
commenced its operations from December 29, 2016 and on that date, had offered one type of Allocation Plan (Plan-
I). However, the Fund has launched Allocation Plan-Il from June 16, 2017. The Fund is allowed to invest in Shariah
Compliant Collective Investment Schemes or in cash and / or near cash instruments as allowed under circular no.
07 of 2009 dated March 6, 2009 issued by the SECP. The maturity of Allocation Plan | and Il is two years from the
close of the initial period i.e. December 29, 2018 and June 16, 2019 respectively.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned an asset manager rating of AM2++ dated
December 28, 2017 to the Management Company. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of MCB Financial Services Limited as Trustee of the Fund.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

"These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:"

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and the requirements
of the Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the
IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of the Trust Deed have
been followed.

The Directors of the asset management company declare that these financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Fund.

Standards, Interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective
in the current year

There are certain amendments to the standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the Fund's accounting
period beginning on or after July 1, 2017 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on
the Fund's operations and are, therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2.3 Standards, Interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

2.3.1 The following standards have been adopted in Pakistan and would be effective from the dates mentioned below
against the respective standards:

Effective date (accounting

Standards, Interpretations or Amendments period beginning on or after)
- IFRS-9 Financial Instruments 01 July 2018
- IFRS-15 Revenue from contracts with customers 01 July 2018
- IFRS-16 Leases 01 January 2019

These standards may impact the financial statements of the Fund on adoption. The Management is currently in the
process of assessing the full impact of these standards on the financial statements of the Fund.

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates, judgements and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current
and future years.

The areas involving a degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant
to the financial statements are as follows:

- Classification and valuation of investments (note 3.2 and 5)
- Impairment of financial assets (note 3.2.6)
- Taxation (note 3.6 and 16)

2.5 Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain investments
which are stated at fair value.

2.6 Functional and presentation currency
Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Fund operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's
functional and presentation currency.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied except for the change as disclosed in note 3.9 to these financial statements.

3.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances and short term highly liquid investments with original maturity
of three months or less, are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investments
and other purposes.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

3.2

3.21

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.24

3.2.5

Financial assets

Classification

The Fund classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. The management determines the appropriate classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition and re-evaluates this classification on a regular basis.

Investments are categorised as follows:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profits from short-term fluctuations in
prices are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category. These include held for trading
investments and such other investments that, upon initial recognition, are designated under this category.

b) Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market.

c) Available-for-sale

Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale
or are not classified as (a) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or (b) loans and receivables. These
are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in response to the needs for liquidity or
change in price.

Derivatives

These are measured at fair value. Derivatives with positive fair values (unrealised gains) are included in fair value
of derivative asset and derivatives with negative fair values (unrealised losses) are included in fair value of derivative
liability in the statement of assets and liabilities. The resultant gains and losses are included in the income statement.
Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date on which the Fund
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value and transaction costs are expensed out in the income statement.

Subsequent measurement

a) Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' and "available for sale’

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial instruments classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available-
for-sale' are measured at fair value.

Gains or losses arising, from changes in the fair value and on sale of the financial assets 'at fair value through profit
or loss' are recognised in the Income Statement.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets classified as available for sale are
taken to the ‘Statement of Comprehensive Income’ until these are derecognized or impaired. At this time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized directly in the ‘Statement of Comprehensive Income’ is transferred
to the income statement.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

3.2.6

3.2.7

3.3

34

3.5

3.6

Basis of valuation

- The fair value of investments in open end mutual funds is determined by reference to the quotations obtained
from the NAV report on the MUFAP website at the close of year end.

b) Loans and receivables

Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective yield method.

Gains or losses are recognised in the income statement when the financial assets carried at amortised cost are
derecognised or impaired.

Impairment

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence that the financial assets or a
group of financial assets are impaired. The carrying value of the Fund's assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.

In the case of equity securities classified as 'available for sale’, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered as an objective evidence of impairment. In case of impairment of available
for sale securities, the cumulative loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is removed therefrom
and included in the Income Statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity securities
are only reversed when the equity securities are derecognised.

For certain other financial assets, a provision for impairment is established when there is an objective evidence that
the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The provision against these
amounts is made as per the provisioning policy duly formulated and approved by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company in accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the
Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and
liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions, if any, are regularly reviewed and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
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Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year,
as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders as cash dividend.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

3.7 Dividend distribution and appropriations

Dividend distributions and appropriations are recorded in the period in which these are approved by the Board of
Director of the Management Company. Based on the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan’s (MUFAP) guidelines
duly consented by the SECP, distribution for the year also includes portion of income already paid on units redeemed
during the year.

Regulation 63 of the NBFC Regulations requires the Fund to distribute 90% of the net accounting income other than
capital gains to the unit holders.

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognised in the financial statements of the period in which such distributions are declared and approved by the
Board of Directors of the Management Company.

3.8 Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received
by the distributors during business hours on that date. The offer price represents the net asset value per unit as of
the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load and any provision for duties and charges, if applicable.
The sales load is payable to investment facilitators, distributors and the Management Company.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive redemption
applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net asset value per unit as of
the close of the business day less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, and charges on redemption, if applicable.

3.9 Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in the prices of units issued less those in
units redeemed

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its SRO 756(1)/2017 dated August 3, 2017 has made
certain amendments in the NBFC Regulations. The notification includes a definition and explanation relating to
"element of income" and excludes the element of income from the expression "accounting income" as described
in regulation 63 (amount distributable to unit holders) of the NBFC Regulations. As per the notification, element of
income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption date, as the
case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. Further,
the revised regulations also specify that element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and
payment of element of income shall be taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net
asset value of all units outstanding on the accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying
in unit holders fund will be refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available
for distribution. Furthermore, the revised regulations also require certain additional disclosures with respect to
'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund', whereas disclosure with respect to 'Distribution
Statement' has been deleted in the revised regulations.

Previously, an equalisation account called the 'element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in
prices of units issued less those in units redeemed' was created, in order to prevent the dilution of per unit income
and distribution of income already paid out on redemption. The net element of income / (loss) and capital gains /
(losses) relating to units issued and redeemed during the accounting period which pertained to unrealised appreciation
/ (diminution) held in the Unit Holder's Fund was recorded in a separate account and any amount remaining in this
reserve account at the end of the accounting period (whether gain or loss) was included in the amount available
for distribution to the unitholders. The remaining portion of the net element of income / (loss) and capital gains /
(losses) relating to units issued and redeemed during an accounting period was recognised in the Income Statement.

As required by IAS 8: 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', a change in accounting
policy requires retrospective application as if that policy had always been applied. However, the Management
Company has applied the above changes in accounting policy, including the additional disclosures requirements
in the 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund', prospectively from July 1, 2017 based
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on the clarification issued by the SECP . Accordingly, corresponding figures have not been restated. The ‘Distribution
Statement’ for the comparative period has not been presented as it has been deleted as a result of the amendments
made in the NBFC Regulations through the aforementioned SRO issued by the SECP.

Had the element of income / (loss) been recognised as per the previous accounting policy, the loss of Plan | would
be lower by Rs 4.025 million while Income Statement of Plan Il would have resulted in a loss of Rs 3.11 million
respect of element of income Consequently, NAV per unit of the Plan | would have nil effect on its net assets and
net assets of Plan Il would increase by Re. 0.217 per unit. The change in accounting policy does not have any
impact on the 'Cash flow Statement', the 'net assets attributable to the unit holders' and 'net asset value per unit'
for Plan-I as shown in the 'Statement of Assets and Liabilities' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund'
and Cash flow Statement' for Plan-1l. The change has resulted in inclusion of certain additional disclosures / new
presentation requirements in the 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund which have
been incorporated in these statements.

3.10 Net asset value per unit

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit, as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities, is calculated by dividing
the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in circulation at the year end.

3.11 Revenue recognition

Gain or loss on sale of investment is accounted for in the income statement in the period in which it arises.
- Unrealised gain / loss arising on revaluation of investments classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' is
included in the income statement in the period in which it arises.

- Unrealised gain / loss arising on revaluation of investments classified as available for sale is included in other
comprehensive income in the period in which it arises.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

- Profit / mark-up on bank balances, term deposit receipts and government securities is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method.

3.12 Expenses
All expenses chargeable to the fund including remuneration of management company, trustee fee and annual fee
of the SECP are recognized in the income statement on an accrual basis.

3.13 Earnings / (loss) per unit

Earnings / (loss) per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management, determination of
weighted average number of outstanding units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

3.14 Preliminary expenses and floatation cost
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of operations

of the Fund. These costs are being amortised over a period of two years in accordance with the requirements set
out in the Trust Deed of the Fund and the Non-Banking Finance companies and Notified Entities Regulation, 2008.
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Note AIAAP - | AIAAP - I Total

2018 2018 2018

4 BANKBALANCES e (Rupees in 000)---=------
In current account 41 1,997 1,384 3,381
In savings account 4.2 75,943 26,011 101,954
77,940 27,395 105,335

AIAAP -1  AIAAP-II Total
2017 2017 2017

In current account 41 1,384 6,187 7,571
In savings account 4.2 103,184 6,809 109,993
104,568 12,996 117,564

4.1 Bank balance in current account is maintained with MCB Bank Limited, a related party of the Fund.

4.2 These carry profit at the rate of 6.5% (2017: ranging from 5.50% to 5.60%) per annum for Plan-I and 6.5% (2017:
5.60%) per annum for Plan-Il.

Note AIAAP -1  AIAAP-II Total

2018 2018 2018

5 INVESTMENTS e (Rupees in 000)----------
At fair value through profit or loss - held for trading

- Units of open end mutual funds 5.1 1,326,599 767,744 2,094,343

AIAAP -1  AIAAP-II Total
2017 2017 2017

At fair value through profit or loss - held for trading
- Units of open end mutual funds 1,492,831 74,956 1,567,787

5.1 At fair value through profit or loss - held for trading

5.1.1 Allocation Plan | - Units of open end mutual funds (related party) Note-5.1.1.1

Number Carrying Market Unrealised Market Market
Purchased Sold value as at | value as at | appreciation / value as a value as a
Name of the fund As at July 1, X . As at June 30, o percentage
during the during June 30, | June 30, | (diminution)as at | percentage of net
2017 2018 of total
year the year 2018 2018 June 30, 2018 assets investment
weemmemeemee=(RS i "000")---
Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund 71,103,335 94,168,173 109,282,855 55,988,653 658,236 603,558 (54,678) 43% 45%
Alhamra Islamic Income Fund 6,151,984 18,695,068 18,030,717 6,816,335 713,551 723,041 9,490 52% 55%
Total as at June 30, 2018 1,371,787 1,326,599 (45,188)
Total as at June 30, 2017 1,485,039 1,492,831 6,792

5.1.1.1 The cost of investments in units of open end mutual funds as at June 30, 2018 amounted to Rs. 1,493.033 million
(2017: Rs 1,486.039 million).
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5.1.2 Allocation Plan Il - Units of open end mutual funds (related party)-note 5.1.2.1

Number of units Market
Carrying Market Unrealised Market val:er :s a
Purchased Sold value as at | value as at | appreciation / value as a
Name of the fund (s at July 1, duringthe | during AsatJune30, [ ;une30, | June30, | (diminution)as at | percentage of net percentage
2017 h 2018 2018 2018 June 30, 2018 assets of total
year the year ’ investment
B (3 I 1 IV EEe
Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund 2,029,221 66,740,665 36,574,208 32,195,678 358,451 347,069 (11,382) 44% 45%
Alhamra Islamic Income Fund 495648 14,906,564 11,436,373 3,965,839 414,528 420,675 6,147 53% 55%
Total as at June 30, 2018 772,979 772,979 767,744 (5,235
Total as at June 30, 2017 75,000 74,956 (44)

5.1.2.1 The cost of investments in units of open end mutual funds as at June 30, 2018 amounted to Rs. 811.176 million
(2017: Rs. 75 million).

Note AIAAP-1  AIAAP-II Total
5.2 Unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on re-measurement 2018 2018 2018
of investments classified as financial assets at fairvalue @ = semeeeeeeq (Rupees in 000)----------
through profit or loss - net
Market value as at June 30 51.1&5.1.2 1,326,599 767,744 2,094,343
Less: carrying value as at June 30 51.1&5.1.2 1,371,787 772,979 2,144,766
(45,188) (5,235) (50,423)
AIAAP -1  AIAAP-1I Total
2017 2017 2017
---------- (Rupees in 000)----------
Market value as at June 30 1,492,831 74,956 1,567,787
Less: carrying value as at June 30 1,486,039 75,000 1,561,039
6,792 (44) 6,748
AIAAP -1  AIAAP-1I Total
2018 2018 2018
6 PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOATATION COSTS ~ =eemeeeeen (Rupees in 000)----------
Opening Balance 3,740 - 3,740
Less: amortisation for the year (2,500) - (2,500)
Closing balance 1,240 - 1,240
AIAAP -1  AIAAP -1I Total
2017 2017 2017
---------- (Rupees in 000)----------
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs incurred 5,000 - 5,000
Less: amortisation during the period (1,260) - (1,260)
Closing balance 3,740 - 3,740

6.1 Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of operations
of the Fund. These costs are being amortised over a period of two years in accordance with the requirements set

out in the Trust Deed of the Fund and the Non-Banking Finance companies and Notified Entities Regulation, 2008.
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Note AIAAP - | AIAAP - I Total
7 PAYABLE TO MCB-ARIF HABIB SAVINGS AND 2018 2018 2018
INVESTMENTS LIMITED - MANAGEMENT COMPANY - (Rupees in 000)----------
Management remuneration payable 71 66 34 100
Sindh sales tax payable on management remun 7.2 9 4 13
Sales load payable - - -
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs payable - - -
Payable against allocated expenses 7.3 116 67 183
Others - - -
191 105 296
AIAAP -1 AIAAP - I Total
2017 2017 2017
---------- (Rupees in 000)----------
Management remuneration payable 524 30 554
Sindh sales tax payable on management remuneration 69 4 73
Sales load payable - 7 7
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs payable 5,000 - 5,000
Payable against allocated expenses 134 4 138
Others 30 30 60

5,757 75 5,832

7.1 The Management Company has charged remuneration at a rate of 1% of average annual net assets of the Fund
during the year. However, no remuneration is charged on that part of the net assets which has been invested in
the mutual funds managed by the Management Company. The remuneration is paid to the Management Company
on a monthly basis in arrears.

7.2 During the year, Sindh Sales Tax on management fee has been charged at 13% (2017:13%).

7.3 In accordance with the provisions of the NBFC Regulations, 2008 (as amended vide S.R.O 1160(l) / 2015 dated
November 25, 2015), the Management Company of the Fund is entitled to reimbursement of fees and expenses
in relation to registrar services, accounting, operation and valuation services related to the Fund upto a maximum
of 0.1% of the average annual net assets of the Scheme or actual, whichever is less. Accordingly, with effect from
December 29, 2016 the Management Company has charged expenses at the rate of 0.1% per annum of the average
annual net assets of the Fund being lower than actual expenses chargeable to the Fund for the year.

Note AIAAP - | AIAAP - 1I Total

8 PAYABLE TO MCB FINANCIAL SERVICES 2018 2018 2018
LIMITED-TRUSTEE e (Rupees in 000)----------

Trustee remuneration payable 8.1 98 60 158

Sindh sales tax payable on Trustee remuneratiol 8.2 11 8 19

109 68 177
AIAAP -1 AIAAP - 11 Total
2017 2017 2017

Trustee remuneration payable 97 10 107
Sindh sales tax payable on Trustee remuneration 13 1 14
110 11 121
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8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

10

Under the provisions of the Trust Deed, the Trustee is entitled to a remuneration, to be paid monthly in arrears as
per the following tariff structure.

Net Assets Value (NAV) Tariff per annum

Up to Rs 1 billion Rs 0.09% per annum of Daily Net Assets or Rs 0.25 million per annum, whichever is
higher
Over Rs 1 billion Rs 0.9 million plus 0.065% per annum of Daily Net Assets exceeding Rs. 1 billion

Sindh Sales Tax at 13% (2017: 13%) is charged on Trustee fee.

The remuneration is paid to the Trustee on monthly basis in arrears.

Note AIAAP -1 AIAAP -1I Total
2018 2018 2018
PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE = ceeeeeeeee| (Rupees in 000)----------
COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN (SECP)
Annual fee payable to the SECP 9.1 1,385 687 2,072
AIAAP -1 AIAAP - I Total
2017 2017 2017

Annual fee payable to the SECP 723 3 726

Under the provisions of the Non Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008,
a collective investment scheme is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to
0.095 percent of the averaae annual net assets of the Fund.

Note AIAAP - 1| AIAAP - I Total
2018 2018 2018
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES = ceeeeeeen (Rupees in 000)--------—

Auditors' remuneration 187 93 280
Printing charges 24 16 40
Payable to legal advisor 58 27 85
Others 289 96 385
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 10.1 264 176 440
822 408 1,230

AIAAP - 1| AIAAP - I Total

2017 2017 2017

Auditors' remuneration 285 1 286
Printing charges 100 - 100
Payable to legal advisor 66 1 67
Others 99 - 99
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 264 3 267

814 5 819
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10.1 As a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution of Pakistan, in May 2015 the Sindh Workers’ Welfare
Fund Act, 2014 (SWWF Act) had been passed by the Government of Sindh as a result of which every industrial
establishment located in the Province of Sindh, the total income of which in any accounting year is not less than
Rs 0.50 million, was required to pay Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund (SWWF) in respect of that year a sum equal to
two percent of such income. The matter was taken up by the MUFAP with the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) collectively
on behalf of various asset management companies and their CISs whereby it was contested that mutual funds
should be excluded from the ambit of the SWWF Act as these were not industrial establishments but were pass
through investment vehicles and did not employ workers. The SRB held that mutual funds were included in the
definition of financial institutions as per the Financial Institution (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 and were,
hence, required to register and pay SWWF under the SWWF Act. Thereafter, MUFAP had taken up the matter with
the Sindh Finance Ministry to have CISs / mutual funds excluded from the applicability of SWWF. In view of the
above developments regarding the applicability of SWWF on CISs/mutual funds, the MUFAP recommended that
as a matter of abundant caution provision in respect of SWWF should be made on a prudent basis with effect from
the date of enactment of the SWWF Act, 2014 (i.e. starting from May 21, 2015).

Had the provision for SWWF not been recorded in the financial statements of the Fund, the net asset value of Plan
| and Il as at June 30, 2018 would have been higher by Re. 0.0175 (2017: Re 0.0167) per unit and Re. 0.0221
(2017: Re 0.0034) per unit respectively.

11 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2018.

AIAAP - | AIAAP - I Total
2018 2018 2018
12 NUMBEROFUNITSINISSUE e (Number) ----------

Total units in issue at the beginning of the year 15,839,822 879,643 16,719,465
Add: units issued during the year 204,603 7,692,214 7,896,817
Less: redemptions during the year 976,579 596,861 1,573,440
Total units in issue as at June 30, 2018 15,067,846 7,974,996 23,042,842

AIAAP - | AIAAP -1I Total

2017 2017 2017

---------- (Number) ----------
Total units in issue at the beginning of the period - - -

Add: units issued during the period 16,225,459 879,643 17,105,102
Less: redemptions during the period (385,637) - (385,637)
Total units in issue as at June 30, 2017 15,839,822 879,643 16,719,465

AIAAP - | AIAAP - I Total

2018 2018 2018

13 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION e (Rupees in 000)----------

Annual audit fee 108 51 159
Half yearly review fee 53 25 78
Other certifications 68 32 100
Sindh Sales Tax on services @ 8% 18 9 27
Out of pocket expenses 36 - 36
283 117 400
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AIAAP -1 AIAAP - I Total
2017 2017 2017
---------- (Rupees in 000)----------

Annual audit fee 150 1 151
Half yearly review fee 65 - 65
Other certifications 205 - 205
Sindh Sales Tax on services @ 8% 34 - 34
Out of pocket expenses 19 - 19

473 1 474

14 TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The total expense ratio of the Fund for the period ended June 30, 2018 is 0.57% (2017: 0.66%) and 0.43% (2017:
0.07%) for Plan-I and Plan-Il respectively which includes 0.13% (2017: 0.13%) in Plan-l and 0.15% (2017: 0.02%)
in Plan-1l representing government levies on the Fund such as provision fro Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund, sales
taxes, federal excise duties, annual fee to the SECP, etc. This ratio is within the maximum limit of 2.5% prescribed
under the NBFC Regulations for a collective investment scheme categorised as fund of fund where management
fee is charged.

15 TAXATION

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year,
as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders as cash dividend.
Furthermore, regulation 63 of the NBFC Regulations, requires the Fund to distribute 90% of the net accounting
income other than capital gains to the unit holders. The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113
(minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Since the
Management Company has distributed the income earned by the Fund during the period to the unit holders in the
manner as explained above, no provision for taxation has been made in these financial statements.

16 TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES
Related parties / connected persons of the Fund include MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited (being
the Management Company) and its related entities, MCB Financial Services Limited (being the Trustee of the Fund),
other collective investment schemes and pension schemes managed by the Management Company, any person
or trust beneficially owning (directly or indirectly) ten percent or more of the capital of the Management Company
or the net assets of the Fund and directors, key management personnel and officers of the Management Company.

Transactions with related parties / connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and
terms determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration of the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of
the NBFC Regulations, 2008 and the Trust Deed respectively.

The details of transactions carried out by the Fund with connected persons / related parties and balances with them
at the year / period end are as follows:

16.1 Details of transactions with related parties / connected persons during the year / period
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MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments
Limited - Management Company

Remuneration of the Management Company (including indirect taxes)

Allocated expenses and related taxes

MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee
Remuneration of the Trustee (including indirect taxes)

Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund
Purchase of 94,168,172 and 66,740,666 units by the Fund
Sale of 109,282,855 and 36,574,208 units by the Fund

Alhamra Islamic Income Fund
Purchase of 18,695,068 and 14,906,564 units by the Fund
Sale of 18,030,717 and 11,436,373 units by the Fund

Unitholders holding 10% or more
Issue of 1,001,305 units

MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments
Limited - Management Company

Remuneration of the Management Company (including indirect taxes) 4,872

Allocated expenses and related taxes

MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee
Remuneration of the Trustee (including indirect taxes)

Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund
Purchase of 145,459,842 and 2,029,221 units by the Fund
Sale of 74,356,507 units by the Fund

Alhamra Islamic Income Fund
Purchase of 13,257,628 and 495,648 units by the Fund
Sale of 7,105,644 units by the Fund

AIAAP - | AIAAP - I Total
For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended
June 30, June 30, June 30,
---------- (Rupees in 000)----------

938 476 1,414
1,648 817 2,465
1,365 752 2,117
1,094,000 740,000 1,834,000
1,224,000 403,000 1,627,000
1,946,895 1,639,090 3,485,985
1,876,895 1,190,570 3,067,465
- 100,000 100,000

AIAAP - | AIAAP - I Total
For the period . For the period

For the period

from from
December 29, from June 16, December 29,
2016 to June ZO; tzo‘:;"e 2016 to June

30,2017 ’ 30, 2017

---------- (Rupees in 000)----------

34 4,906
860 4 864
699 11 710
1,901,039 25,000 1,926,039
1,015,901 - 1,015,901
1,335,901 50,000 1,385,901
716,039 - 716,039
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AIAAP - | AIAAP - li Total
For ttf\r(: :)nerlod For the period For t:‘:, |:ner|od
December 29, f;g:;‘:zzz::’ December 29,
2016 to June 30. 2017 2016 to June
30,2017 ’ 30,2017
---------- (Rupees in 000)----------
MCB Employees Pension Fund
Issue of 586,520 and 751,350 units 58,652 75,135 133,787
Dividend paid 465 135 600
Directors and key management personnel of the Management Company
Issue of 4,007 units 403 - 403
Dividend paid 3 - 3
16.2 Details of balances with related parties / connected persons as at year / period end
Note  AIAAP -1 AIAAP - 1I Total
2018 2018 2018
---------- (Rupees in 000)----------
MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments
Limited - Management Company
Management remuneration payable 66 34 100
Sindh sales tax payable on management remuneration 9 4 13
Sales load payable - - -
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs payable - - -
Payable against allocated expenses 116 67 183
Others - - -
MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee
Trustee remuneration payable 98 60 158
Sindh sales tax payable on Trustee remuneration 11 8 19
MCB Bank Limited - Parent of the Management Company
Bank balance 1,997 1,384 3,381

Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund
Outstanding 55,988,653 and 32,195,678 units 17.3 603,558 347069 950,627
(investment made by the Fund)

Alhamra Islamic Income Fund 17.3
Outstanding 6,816,335 and 3,965,839 units (investment 723,041 420,675 1,143,716
made by the Fund)

MCB Employees Pension Fund 17.3
Outstanding 586,520 and 751,350 units 54,647 74,814 129,461

Unitholders holding 10% or more
Outstanding 1,001,305 units - 99,703 99,703
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AIAAP -1 AIAAP - I Total
Note 2017 2017 2017

MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments
Limited - Management Company

Management remuneration payable 524 30 554
Sindh sales tax payable on management remuneration 69 4 73
Sales load payable - 7 7
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs payable 5,000 - 5,000
Payable against allocated expenses 134 4 138
Others 30 30 60

MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee

Trustee remuneration payable 97 10 107
Sindh sales tax payable on Trustee remuneration 13 1 14
AIAAP -1 AIAAP - I Total

2017 2017 2017

MCB Bank Limited - Parent of the Management Company
Bank balance 1,384 6,187 7,571

Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund
Outstanding 71,103,335 and 2,029,221 units (investment
made by the Fund) 871,016 24,858 895,874

Alhamra Islamic Income Fund
Outstanding 6,151,984 and 495,648 units (investment
made by the Fund) 621,815 50,098 671,913

MCB Employees Pension Fund
Outstanding 586,520 and 751,350 units 58,662 75,139 133,801

Directors and key management personnel of the
Management Company
Outstanding 4,007 units 401 - 401

16.3 This reflects the position of related party / conneced persons status as at June 30, 2018.
16.4 The Fund's investment in related parties are disclosed in note 5.
17  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
As at June 30, 2018, all the financial assets carried on the statement of assets and liabilities are categorised either

as loans and receivables or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. All the financial liabilities carried on
the statement of assets and liabilities are categorised as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
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As at June 30, 2018

. Loans and Financial assets
Particulars . ‘at fair value | Ayajjable for sale Total
receivables through profit
or loss'

(Rupees in '000)

| Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund Plan | |

Financial assets

Bank balances 77.940 - - 77.940
Investments - 1.326.599 - 1.326.599
Profit receivable 420 - - 420
Other receivable 149 - - 149
78.509 1.326.599 - 1405108
As at June 30, 2018
Particulars Liabilities 'at fair II"_in;l_?;;ial
iabilities
valu? throug'h measured at Total
profitorloss' | amortised cost
--------------------- (Rupees in '000) --==-===n===nmnmnmum.
Financial liabilities
Pavable to MCB-Arif Habib Savinas and
Investments Limited - Manaaement Companv - 182 182
Pavable to MCB Financial Services - 98 98
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 558 558

= A A

As 30,2018
Particul Loans and Financial assets
articulars ‘at fair value .
receivables through profit Available for sale Total
or loss'

(Rupees in '000)

| Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund Plan II |

Financial assets

Bank balances 27.395 - - 27.395
Investments - 767.744 - 767.744
Profit receivable 221 - - 221
— 27616 _______76r744 - 795360
As at June 30, 2018
o . Financial
. Liabilities 'at fair o
Particulars liabilities
value through Total
fitor | \ measured at
profit orloss amortised cost
-------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---==--====nuuuuuuumm
Financial liabilities
Payable to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and
Investments Limited - Management Company - 101 101
Payable to MCB Financial Services - 60 60
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 136 136
- 297 297

717 ALHAMRAISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION FUND




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

As at June 30, 2017
Financial assets

Particulars Loans and ‘at fair value i
. .. |Available for sale Total
receivables | through profit
or loss'

(Rupees in '000)

Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund Plan |

Financial assets

Bank balances 104,568 - - 104,568
Investments - 1,492,831 - 1,492,831
Profit receivable 3,039 - - 3,039
Other receivable 139 - - 139

107,746 1,492,831 - 1,600,577

As at June 30, 2017

Liabilities 'at fai Financial
Particulars fabliities -atiair) — apilities
value through Total

fitor | \ measured at
profitorioss amortised cost

Financial liabilities
Payable to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited -

Management Company - 5,589 5,589
Payable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee - 97 97
Dividend payable - 12,672 12,672
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 550 550

- 18,908 18,908

As at June 30, 2017
Financial assets

Particulars Loans and ‘at fair value .
. .. |Available for sale Total
receivables through profit
or loss'

(Rupees in '000)

Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund Plan Il

Financial assets

Bank balances 12,996 - - 12,996
Investments - 74,956 - 74,956
Profit receivable 269 - - 269

13,265 74,956 - 88,221

718 ALHAMRAISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION FUND




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

As at June 30, 2017

Liabilities 'at fai Financial
Particulars tabflities ‘attair) — apilities
value through Total

i measured at
profit or loss'

amortised cost

Payable to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and

Investments Limited - Management Company - 71 71
Payable to MCB Financial Services - 10 10
Dividend payable - 158 158
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 2 2

- 241 241

18  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
18.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the
changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following
the internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee and the
regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, profit rate risk and price risk.
18.1.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in foreign exchange rates. At present, the Fund is not exposed to currency risk as all the transactions are
carried out in Pakistani Rupees.

18.1.2 Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market profit rates. As of June 30, 2018, the Fund is exposed to such risk on its balances held with
banks. The Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfolio of the Fund on a regular basis to ensure that
the risk is managed within the acceptable limits.

AIAAP -1 AIAAP - 1I Total
2018 2018 2018

Variable rate instrument (financial asset)

Bank balances 75,943 26,011 101,954
AIAAP -1 AIAAP - I Total
2017 2017 2017

Variable rate instrument (financial asset)
Bank balances 103.184 6,809 109,993
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a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in profit rates at the reporting date would have increased /
decreased the income statement and statement of comprehensive income by Rs. 0.759 million (2017: Rs. 1.032
million) and Rs. 0.260 million (2017: Rs. 0.068 million) for Plan | and Il respectively and consequently statement
of movement in unit holders' fund would be affected by the same amount. The analysis assumes that all other
variables remain constant.

b) Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Presently, the Fund does not hold any fixed rate instruments that may expose the Fund to any material profit rate
risk.

The composition of the Fund's investment may change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as
at June 30, 2018 is not necessarily indicative of the impact on the Fund's net assets of future movements in profit
rates.

Yield rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual repricing
or maturity date and for off-balance sheet financial instruments is based on settlement date.

As at June 30, 2018
Exposed to yield risk
) Effecti More than Not exposed
Particulars =MECtiVe | ypto three | three months | More than | to yield rate Total
yield / rate .
months and up toone| one year risk
year
% (Rupees in '000)

| Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund Plan |

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances 6.50% 75.943 - - 1,997 77.940
Investments - - - 1326599  1.326.599
Profit receivable _ _ _ 420 420
Other receivable _ _ _ 149 149
Sub total 75.943 - - 1329165 1.405.108
As at June 30, 2018
Exposed to yield risk
) Effecti More than Not exposed
Particulars i I:(; w: Upto three | three months [ More than | to yield rate Total
yleld[rate months |[and uptoone| one year risk
year
% (Rupees in '000)

Financial liabilities
Payable to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments

Limited - Management Company - - - 182 182
Payable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee - - - 98 98
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 558 558
Sub total - - - 838 838
On-balance sheet gap 75,943 - - 1,328,327 1,404,270
Total profit rate sensitivity gap 75,943 - - 1,328,327 1,404,270
Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 75,943 75,943 75,943
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As at June 30, 2018

Exposed to yield risk
. Effecti More than Not exposed
Particulars . ective Upto three | three months | More than | to yield rate Total
yield / rate .
months [and uptoone| one year risk
year
% (Rupees in "000)
| Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund Plan lI
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 6.50% 26,011 - - 1.384 27,395
Investments - - - 767,744 767,744
Profit receivable - - - 221 221
26.011 - - 769.349 795,360
Financial liabilities
Pavable to MCB-Arif Habib Savinas and Investments
Limited - Management Company - - - 101 101
Pavable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee - - - 60 60
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 136 136
Sub Total - - - 297 297
On-balance sheet gap 26.011 - - 769.052 795,063
Total profit rate sensitivity gap 26,011 - - 769,052 795,063
Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 26.011 26.011 26.011
As at June 30, 2017
Exposed to yield risk
) Effecti More than Not exposed
Particulars -NeCliVe | ypto three | three months | More than | to yield rate Total
yield / rate .
months and up toone| one year risk
year
% (Rupees in '000)
| Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund Plan |
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 5.5% -5.6% 103,184 - - 1,384 104,568
Investments - - - 1.492.831 1.492.831
Profit receivable - - - 3.039 3.039
Other receivable - - - 139 139
Sub total 103,184 - - 1,497,393 1,600,577
Financial liabilities
Pavable to MCB-Arif Habib Savinas and Investments
Limited - Manaagement Company - - - 5,589 5,589
Pavable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee - - - 97 97
Dividend pavable - - - 12.672 12.672
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 550 550
Sub total - - - 18.908 18.908
On-balance sheet gap 103,184 - - 1478485 1.581.669
Total profit rate sensitivity gap 103,184 - - 1.478.485 1.581.669
Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 103,184 103,184 103,184
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As at June 30. 2017
Exposed to yield risk
) Effecti More than Not exposed
Particulars - Iz(; 'V: Upto three | three months | More than | to yield rate Total
yield /[ rate months and up toone| one year risk
year
% (Rupees in '000)

| Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund Plan II

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances 5.60% 6.809 - - 6,187 12,996
Investments - - - 74,956 74,956
Profit receivable - - - 269 269
Sub total 6.809 - - 81.412 88.221
Financial liabilities
Pavable to MCB-Arif Habib Savinas and Investments

Limited - Management Companv - - - 71 71
Pavable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee - - - 10 10
Dividend pavable - - - 158 158
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 2 2
Sub Total - - - 241 241
On-balance sheet gap 6.809 - - 81.171 87.980
Total profit rate sensitivity gap 6.809 - - 81.171 87.980

Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 6.809 6.809 6,809

18.1.3 Price risk

18.2

18.2.1

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.

A reasonably possible change of 5% increase or decrease in fair values at the reporting date would have increased
/ decreased the income statement and statement of comprehensive income by Rs. 66.330 million (2017: Rs. 74.642
million) and Rs. 38.387 million (2017: Rs 3.748 million) for Plan | and Il respectively and consequently statement
of movement in unit holders' fund would be affected by the same amount. The analysis assumes that all other
variables remain constant.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if counterparties fail to perform as contracted and arises principally from
bank balances, investments, profit and other receivable.

The Fund’s policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk management policies and
investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee. In addition, the risk is managed through assignment
of credit limits and by following strict credit evaluation criteria laid down by the Management Company. The Fund
does not expect to incur material credit losses on its financial assets.

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2018 was as follows:
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Plan |

Plan I

Balance as per

Balance as per

statement of Maximum statement of Maximum
assets and exposure assets and exposure
liabilities liabilities
Bank balances 77,940 77,940 27,395 27,395
Investments 1,326,599 - 767,744 -
Profit receivable 420 420 221 221
Other receivable 149 149 - -
1,405,108 78,509 795,360 27,616
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2017 was as follows:
Plan | Plan |l
Balance as per Balance as per
statement of Maximum statement of Maximum
assets and exposure assets and exposure
liabilities liabilities
Bank balances 104,568 104,568 12,996 12,996
Investments 1,492,831 - 74,956 -
Profit receivable 3,039 3,039 269 269
Other receivable 139 139 - -
1,600,577 107,746 88,221 13,265
18.2.2 Bank balances
The Fund held bank balances at June 30, 2018 with banks having following credit ratings:
Plan | Plan i
Rating Rupees % Rupees %
AAA 1,998 2.56% 1,384 5.05%
AA+ 10 0.01% 10 0.04%
AA- 14 0.02% - 0.00%
A+ 75,918 97.41% 26,001 94.91%
77,940 100.00% 27,395 100.00%

Above rates are on the basis of available ratings assigned by PACRA and JCR-VIS as of June 30, 2018.

723 ALHAMRAISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION FUND




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The Fund held bank balances at June 30, 2017 with banks having following credit ratings:

Plan | Plan Il
Rating Rupees % Rupees %
AAA 1,394 1.33% 6,187 47.61%
AA+ 10 0.01% - -
AA- 10 0.01% - -
A+ 103,154 98.65% 6,809 52.39%
104,568 100.00% 12,996 100.00%

Above rates are on the basis of available ratings assigned by PACRA and JCR-VIS as of June 30, 2017.

18.2.3 Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect the group of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund's total credit exposure. Details of the Fund's
concentration of credit risk of financial instruments by economic sectors are as follows:

As at June 30, 2018 Plan | Plan |l
Rupees % Rupees %
Commercial banks (including profit receivable) 78,569 100.00% 27,616 100.00%
78,569 100.00% 27,616 100.00%

All financial assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2018 are unsecured and are not impaired.

As at June 30, 2017 Plan | Plan |l
Rupees % Rupees %
Commercial banks (including profit receivable) 107,746 100.00% 13,265 100.00%
107,746 100.00% 13,265 100.00%

All financial assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2017 are unsecured and are not impaired.
18.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligations
in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to redemptions of its redeemable units on a regular basis. The Fund's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due under both normal and stressed conditions.The Fund's policy is therefore to invest the majority of its assets in
short term instruments in order to maintain liquidity.

The Fund can borrow in the short term to ensure settlement. The maximum amount available to the Fund from the
borrowing would be limited to fifteen percent of the net assets upto 90 days and would be secured by the assets
of the Fund. The facility would bear interest at commercial rates. However, no borrowing was required to be obtained
by the Fund during the current year.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund may also withhold daily redemption requests in excess of
ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests qualifying for being
processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption requests
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come down to a level below ten percent of the units then in issue. The Fund did not withhold any redemptions during
the year.

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund's financial instruments. The analysis into relevant maturity
groupings is based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting year / period to the contractual maturity date.
However, the assets and liabilities that are receivable / payable on demand including bank balances have been
included in the maturity grouping of one month.

As at June 30, 2018

Particulars Upto three More than three More than one
months and Total

months year
upto one year

(Rupees in '000)

[ Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund Plan |

Assets
Bank balances 77,940 - - 77,940
Investments 1,326,599 - - 1,326,599
Profit receivable 420 - - 420
Other receivable 149 - - 149
1,405,108 - - 1,405,108
Liabilities
Payable to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments
Limited - Management Company 182 - - 182
Payable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee 98 - - 98
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 558 - - 558
838 - - 838
Net assets 1,404,270 - - 1,404,270
As at June 30, 2018
Particulars Upto three More than three More than one
months months and year Total
upto one year
(Rupees in '000)
| Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund Plan Il
Assets
Bank balances 27,395 - - 27,395
Investments 767,744 - - 767,744
Profit receivable 221 - - 221
795,360 - - 795,360
Liabilities
Payable to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments
Limited - Management Company 101 - - 101
Payable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee 60 - - 60
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 136 - - 136
297 - - 297
Net assets 795,063 - - 795,063
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As at June 30, 2017

Particulars Upto three More than three More than one
months and Total

months year
upto one year

(Rupees in '000)

| Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund Plan |

Assets
Bank balances 104,568 - - 104,568
Investments 1,492,831 - - 1,492,831
Profit receivable 3,039 - - 3,039
Other receivable 139 - - 139
1,600,577 - - 1,600,577
Liabilities
Payable to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments
Limited - Management Company 5,589 - - 5,589
Payable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee 97 - - 97
Dividend payable 12,672 - - 12,672
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 550 - - 550
18,908 - - 18,908
Net assets 1,581,669 - - 1,581,669
As at June 30, 2017
Particulars Upto three More than three More than one
months months and year Total
upto one year
(Rupees in '000)
Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund Plan Il |
Assets
Bank balances 12,996 - - 12,996
Investments 74,956 - - 74,956
Profit receivable 269 - - 269
88,221 - - 88,221
Liabilities
Payable to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments
Limited - Management Company 71 - - 71
Payable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee 10 - - 10
Dividend payable 158 - - 158
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2 - - 2
241 - - 241
Net assets 87,980 - - 87,980

18.4 Fair value measurement
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability can be settled, between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and the
fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Fair value of investments is determined as per the policy disclosed in note 3.2.5 to these financial statements.
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Fair value hierarchy

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Fund to classify assets using
a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: Quoted price (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2018, the Fund held the following assets measured at fair values:

June 30, 2018
| Levell | Level2 | Level3 | Total
--------------------- Rupees in '000 -------x-mxmmenmmn

At fair value through profit or loss - held for trading
- Units of open end mutual funds (Plan I) 1,326,599 - - 1,326,599
- Units of open end mutual funds (Plan II) 767,744 - - 767,744

As at June 30, 2017, the Fund held the following assets measured at fair values:
June 30, 2017

| Levell | Level2 | Level3 | Total
--------------------- Rupees in '000 -------xmmxnmenman

At fair value through profit or loss - held for trading
- Units of open end mutual funds (Plan I) 1,492,831 - - 1,492,831
- Units of open end mutual funds (Plan II) 74,956 - - 74,956

18.5 Unit holders' fund risk management

The Fund's objective when managing unit holders' funds is to safeguard the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide optimum returns to its unit holders, to maintain a strong base of assets
to meet unexpected losses or opportunities and to ensure reasonable safety of capital. The Fund manages its
investment portfolio and other assets by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in markets' conditions. The capital structure depends on the issuance and redemption of units.

The Fund has no restrictions on the subscription and redemption of units. As required under the NBFC Regulations,
every open end scheme shall maintain fund size (i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs.100 million at all times during
the life of the scheme. The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirement of minimum fund size during
the current year.

In accordance with the risk management policies as stated in note 19, the Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions
received in appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemption requests, such liquidity
being augmented by short-term borrowings or disposal of investments where necessary.

19 PARTICULARS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND THE FUND MANAGER

Details of the members of the investment committee of the Fund are as follows:
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S. No. Name Designation Experience in Qualification
years

1 Muhammad Sagib Saleem Chief Executive Officer 21 FCA & FCCA
2 Muhammad Asim Chief Investment Officer 15 MBA & CFA
3 Awais Abdul Sattar Head of Research 7 MBA & CFA
4  Saad Ahmed Head of Fixed Income 13 MBA
5  Muhammad Aitazaz Farooqui Senior Analyst 5 BBA, CFA
6  Syed Abid Ali Head of Equity 10 MBA

19.1 Syed Abid Ali is the Manager of the Fund. He is also managing MCB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund, Pakistan Capital

Market Fund, MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund and Pakistan Pension Fund.

20 PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING

PLAN-I
As at June 30, 2018
Category Number of unit | Number of units Net assets value | Percentage of
of the amount total
holders held . .
invested investment
(Rupees in '000)
Individuals 679 12,676,962 1,181,138 84.14%
Associated companies 1 586,520 54,647 3.89%
Insurance companies 2 400,713 37,335 2.66%
Retirement funds 3 335,003 31,213 2.22%
Others 9 1,068,648 99,568 7.09%
694 15,067,846 1,403,901 100.00%
PLAN-II
As at June 30, 2018
Category Number of unit | Number of units Net assets value | Percentage of
of the amount total
holders held . .
invested investment
(Rupees in '000)
Individuals 374 6,412,160 638,477 80.41%
Associated companies 1 751,350 74,814 9.42%
Insurance companies 2 305,824 30,452 3.83%
Retirement funds 3 382,818 38,118 4.80%
Others 3 122,844 12,232 1.54%
383 7,974,996 794,092 100.00%
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21

PLAN-I
As at June 30, 2017
Category Number of unit | Number of units Net assets value | Percentage of
of the amount total
holders held . .
invested investment
(Rupees in '000)
Individuals 720 13,463,075 1,346,527 84.97%
Associated companies 1 586,520 58,662 3.70%
Insurance companies 2 400,113 40,018 2.53%
Retirement funds 3 333,005 33,306 2.10%
Others 9 1,057,109 105,728 6.70%
735 15,839,822 1,584,241 100.00%
PLANH-II
As at June 30, 2017
Category Number of unit | Number of units Net assets value | Percentage of
of the amount total
holders held . .
invested investment
(Rupees in '000)
Individuals 9 89,643 8,965 10.18%
Associated companies 1 751,350 75,139 85.42%
Retirement funds 1 10,000 1,000 1.14%
Others 1 28,650 2,865 3.26%
12 879,643 87,969 100.00%

ATTENDANCE AT THE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The 134th, 135th, 136th, 137th, 138th, 139th, 140th, 141st and 142nd meeting of the Board of Directors were held
on July 6, 2017, August 04, 2017, September 07, 2017, October 12, 2017, October 20, 2017, February 02, 2018,
February 23, 2018, April 19, 2018 and June 11, 2018 respectively. Information in respect of attendance by the

directors and other persons in the meetings is given below:

Number of meetings .
S. No. Name Held [ Attended|Leave granted Meetings not attended
Directors
1 Mian Muhammad Mansha 9 4 5 134th, 135th, 136th, 138th and
142nd
2  Nasim Beg 9 9 -
3  Ahmed Jahangir 9 9 -
4  Mirza Qamar Beg 9 7 2 138th and 142nd
5  Syed Salman Shah 9 7 2 134th and 138th
6  Haroun Rashid 9 6 3 135th, 136th and 142nd
7  Samad A Habib 9 5 4 134th, 136th, 138th and 139th
8  Muhammad Saqib Saleem 9 9 -
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22

23

24

25

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these financial statements,
wherever necessary to facilitate comparison and to conform with changes in presentation in the current year. No
significant rearrangements or reclassifications were made in these financial statements other than those resulting
from changes as disclosed in note 3.9.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Board of Directors of the Management Company on July 4, 2018, approved nil dividend payout for Plan | and
Re. 0.2 per unit for Plan Il for the year ended June 30, 2018. The financial statements of the fund for the year ended
June 30, 2018 does not include the effect of this distribution which will be accounted for in the financial statements
of the fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 14, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Vs - I~

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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PATTERN OF UNITS HOLDING BY SIZE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION PLAN-I

| No.of UnitHolders |  UnitHoldings | Total Units Held |

444 0-10000 2,012,274
219 10001 - 100000 6,540,435
31 100001 - 1000000 6,515,137
694 15,067,846

ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION PLANH-II

| No.ofUnitHolders | UnitHoldings | Total Units Held |

243 0-10000 1,230,599
134 10001 - 100000 4,285,753
5 100001 - 1000000 1,457,338
1 1000001 - Onwards 1,001,305
383 7,974,996
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PERFORMANCE TABLE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation plan |

Total Net Assets Value — Rs. in million 794 87.97
Net Assets value per unit — Rupees 99.5728 100.0057
Closing Offer Price 102.9483 103.3959
Closing Repurchase Price 99.5728 100.0057
Highest offer price per unit 108.2673 103.6315
Lowest offer price per unit 100.4237 100
Highest Redemption price per unit 104.7174 100.2336
Lowest Redemption price per unit 97.1310 97.0282
Distribution per unit — Rs. * - 0.18
Average Annual Return - %
One yéar (Inception Date 16-Jun-17) (0.43) 0.19
Two year (0.12) N/A
Three year N/A N/A
Net Income for the period — Rs. in million 8.46 0.16
Distribution made during the year — Rs. in million - 0.15
Accumulated Capital Growth — Rs. in million 8.46 0.01
* Date of Distribution 2017
Date | Rate
June 30, 2017 0.18
Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation plan Il
Total Net Assets Value — Rs. in million 1,404 1,584
Net Assets value per unit — Rupees 93.172 100.0163
Closing Offer Price 96.3305 103.4069
Closing Repurchase Price 93.1720 100.0163
Highest offer price per unit N/A 106.2503
Lowest offer price per unit N/A 100
Highest Redemption price per unit 100.8834 103.0089
Lowest Redemption price per unit 89.4505 97.0831
Distribution per unit — Rs. * - 0.80
Average Annual Return - %
One yéar (Inception Date 29-Dec-16) (6.84) 0.81
Two year (3.02) N/A
Three year N/A N/A
Net Income for the period — Rs. in million (107.16) 12.93
Distribution made during the year — Rs. in million - 12.67
Accumulated Capital Growth — Rs. in million (107.16) 0.26
* Date of Distribution
2017
Date | Rate
June 30, 2017 0.800

Disclaimer

The past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investments and returns may go
down, as well as up.
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